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REQUEST FOR QUALIFICATIONS / PROPOSALS 
(RFQ/RFP) 

FOR 

ARCHITECTURAL / ENGINEERING SERVICES 
SCHOOL FACILITIES NEEDS ASSESSMENT 

RFP/RFQ NUMBER #W-2023-11 

 
 

August 4, 2023 

ADDENDUM NO. 2 
  
Addendum No.2 is being issued to all potential bidders to provide the items and 
attachments set forth herein which shall act to qualify, clarify, or otherwise modify 
the Documents previously issued regarding the above referenced project. These 
items, whether of omission, addition, substitution, or clarification, shall be 
incorporated into the proposals submitted by all proposers, and receipt of this 
document and its attachments must be acknowledged, either in the space provided 
on the Proposer’s Form of Proposal. Failure to do so may subject the Proposer to 
disqualification. 

 
1. Sign-In Sheet for Non-Mandatory Walk-Through conducted on Friday July 28, 

2023. 
2. Response to RFI No.1 submitted on 8/3/23. 
3. Fee sheet included in the RFP is hereby Deleted, attached Fee sheet is to be 

utilized. 
4. The Team Rooms and the Press Box at Veteran’s Stadium will be added to 
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the Scope of Work. 
• Press Box, 2007, 336sf 
• Team Rooms, 2007, 3,108sf 

5. Drawings for the Press Box and Teams Rooms at Veterans Stadium. 
 

All other terms and conditions of RFQ/RFP W-2023-11 remain the same. 
 





RFI No. 1 
 
 
Written Questions  
for Wilton Facilities Needs Assessment-Town Buildings RFP/RFQ #W-2023-11 
 
To be sent via email to: jeff.pardo@wiltonct.org 
Jeff Pardo no later than Friday, August 4, 3023 at 4PM. 
 
 

1. Volunteer Ambulance Corps is not listed in the RFP, but there are questions and 
scope described to examine new locations for this function. Should this be 
added to the fee breakdown?   

 
Response:  See revised fee sheet 
 

2. Priority 1 includes “cited safety hazards” Does this mean there are hazards that 
were previously documented by code officials? If so, by whom?  Can a full list be 
provided?  

 
Response: Safety inspections have been performed by the Towns Safety 
Inspection Team on all Town buildings.  Some of the items cited in the reports 
have been completed.  These reports will be made available to the firm selected 
by the Town. 
 

3. Are there existing hazardous materials test reports for any of the buildings?  Our 
team could include environmental/hazmat personnel to walk through each 
building and identify risks and potential costs that warrant further testing and 
investigation. Or we could identify that as an optional additional service.   Is that 
an appropriate approach given your current information and needs? 

 
Response: There are reports on some of the buildings, all available reports will be 
made available to the firm selected by the Town.  The RFP indicates the age of 
the buildings and renovations that have occurred.  Based on the age of the 
buildings, hazardous materials will be present in many of the buildings.  The 
scope does not include hazardous material inspection, but the cost to perform 
inspections and potential abatement needs to be included in the assessments. 
 

4. The RFP is identified as a Facility Needs Assessment, but the scope reads more as 
a Property Condition Assessment in that it focuses more on building conditions 
than program needs.  Does the town already have a listing of program needs 
that the nine buildings are expected to accommodate, or do we need to 
assemble one as part of the scope of this effort? It was mentioned that you will 
expect the A/E to talk with each of the Department Heads during this effort. This 
can be at any number of different levels of discussion that range from high level 
brief overviews to details. Please clarify the level of program information you can 
provide and how much you wish the A/E to derive from discussions. 



 
Response: The intent of the RFP is to focus on facilities assessment more than 
program needs.  However, the consultant will interview Directors and 
Department Heads in understanding their needs since many of the buildings ae 
at capacity or have exceeded capacity.  The scope of the RFP is not for the 
consultant to prepare designs, but to make recommendations toward the 
maintenance and renovations of the buildings with cost estimates over the next 
10 years.  Each year, if funding is approved to address the needs described in 
the facilities assessment, an RFP will be prepared to hire a consultant to prepare 
designs and contract documents so that specific need can be addressed 
through a competitive Bid. 
 

7. The fee breakdown in Appendix D does not align perfectly with the scope 
(including as described in Question #1 above).  Additionally, there is an 
economy of scale that can be realized if we review multiple buildings rather than 
one, but the breakdown asks for a cost for each building separately.  What is the 
town’s preference for presentation of potential fee discounts for multiple 
properties on the town hall site as the key example, then Comstock and the 
others separate? 

 
Response:  The Town will be entering into an agreement with just one consultant, 
the Needs Assessment will not be broken up into multiple different consultants.  
The Fee Proposal is for the Town to understand the costs for each building and to 
manage payments while the work is being performed by the consultant. 

  
8. Will a single consultant be hired for the entirety of the project, or is there a 

chance the buildings will be divided up among multiple firms? 
 

Response:  Only one consultant will be hired. 
 

9. We routinely provide opinions of probable cost and remaining useful life 
estimates for our Property Condition Assessments, but the language in the RFP 
suggests something more precise and detailed.  We anticipate utilizing a 
professional estimator as part of our team for this effort.  Please confirm this is 
appropriate for your current needs. 

 
Response:  An independent estimator would be appropriate, however, if a 
consultant is proficient at preparing estimates, then that service could be 
performed in house. 

 
10. You have provided a copy of the drawings the Town has on these sites. You write 

that “the consultant will verify all dimension and conditions and prepare the 
necessary CAD fields…” That is not typical  or practical in this kind of Assessment 
with a  five week schedule of investigation and documentation.  

 
Response:  The Town does not have every drawing of every building or the latest 
renovations.  The consultant will need to verify that the information provided is 
correct. 



 
11. If it becomes obvious that measured a s built drawings would be helpful. We can 

offer that as an additional subcontractor. 
 
As one example, if Town Hall does indeed require field measurements of the 
building, inside and outside to assess feasibility of adding a second floor,, 
elevators and stairs etc. we can provide a separate cost for such a measuring 
service. Do you want such an option as an additional line item now? That may 
also be true for the ANNEX/Dog Pound structure. That may also be true for 
Comstock. Please advise if Wilton would find receiving digitized, fully measured, 
as built drawings useful. It would be a subcontractor. The Town could engage 
directly or the AE can as a pass through. Our clients have found it most helpful. It 
does take 4-6 weeks by itself to produce documents. It may also be better later 
as the capital projects are identified since not every building will need this level 
of detail.  
 
Response:  If it is necessary for the consultant to prepare as-builts, then that work 
needs to be included in the fee.  As-builts may not be required depending on 
the accuracy of the information the Town currently has.  The firm(s) hired to 
prepare the designs and construction documents will be expected to prepare all 
required drawings on CADD. 
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APPENDIX D:  Fee Proposal Form 
 
The following Fee is proposed to perform the duties, responsibilities and 
obligations as described in this RFQ/RFP.  The project shall be completed under a 
lump sum fee arrangement as follows. 
 
Fee breakdown: 
 
Town Hall 
 
Investigation, Survey and Documentation  $____________________ 
 
Preliminary Needs Assessment    $____________________ 
 
Final Report       $____________________ 
 
Sub-total cost      $____________________ 
 
Annex Building/Animal Shelter 
 
Investigation, Survey and Documentation   $____________________ 
 
Preliminary Needs Assessment    $____________________ 
 
Final Report       $____________________ 
 
Sub-total Cost      $____________________ 
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Fire Headquarters 
 
Investigation, Survey and Documentation  $____________________ 
 
Preliminary Needs Assessment    $____________________ 
 
Final Report       $____________________ 
 
Sub-Total Cost      $____________________ 
  
Highway Garage 
 
Investigation, Survey and Documentation  $____________________ 
 
Preliminary Needs Assessment    $____________________ 
 
Final Report       $____________________ 
 
Sub-total Cost      $____________________ 
 
Fire Station No. 2 
 
Investigation, Survey and Documentation  $____________________ 
 
Preliminary Needs Assessment    $____________________ 
 
Final Report       $____________________ 
 
Sub-total Cost      $____________________ 
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Merwin Meadows Restroom Facility 
 
Investigation, Survey and Documentation  $____________________ 
 
Preliminary Needs Assessment    $____________________ 
 
Final Report       $____________________ 
 
Sub-total Cost      $____________________ 
 
 
Merwin Meadows Barn 
 
Investigation, Survey and Documentation  $____________________ 
 
Preliminary Needs Assessment    $____________________ 
 
Final Report       $____________________ 
 
Sub-total Cost      $____________________ 
 
Comstock Community Center 
 
Investigation, Survey and Documentation  $____________________ 
 
Preliminary Needs Assessment    $____________________ 
 
Final Report       $____________________ 
 
Sub-total Cost      $____________________ 
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Veteran’s Memorial Stadium Restroom and Concession Stand 
 
Investigation, Survey and Documentation  $____________________ 
 
Preliminary Needs Assessment    $____________________ 
 
Final Report       $____________________ 
 
Sub-total Cost      $____________________ 
 
Veteran’s Memorial Stadium Team Rooms and Press Box 
 
Investigation, Survey and Documentation  $____________________ 
 
Preliminary Needs Assessment    $____________________ 
 
Final Report       $____________________ 
 
Sub-total Cost      $____________________ 
 
Town Hall Complex Master Plan  
(Including evaluation of building expansions and possible relocation of the 
Ambulance Corp) 
 
Sub-Total Cost      $____________________ 
     
 
Total Cost         $____________________ 
 
Reimbursables (Not To Exceed)    $____________________ 
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Acknowledgment of Addenda: 
 
Addendum No. 1________________ 
Addendum No. 2________________ 
Addendum No. 3________________ 
Addendum No. 4________________  
 
 
 
 
 
Company Name:_________________________ Date:________________ 
 
Address:____________________________________________________________ 
 
___________________________________________________________________ 
 
Name of Submitter:______________________ Title:________________ 
 
Phone:______________________   Email:_______________ 
 
Authorized Signature:__________________________ 
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